
LIVONIA JOINT PLANNING BOARD
THDECEMBER 14, 2020

Present: ChairR. Bennett, D. Andersen, J. Brown, R. Haak, J. Palmer, J. Sparling, CEOA.  
Backus, Zoning Assistant JulieHoltje, Attorney J. Campbell,  

Excused: Secretary A. Houk, L. Willoughby

CEOAdam Backus requested amoment ofsilence inobservance ofthepassing ofChairman
RickBennett brother, Rodrick J. Bennett.  

Note, Public Meetings (Covid-19) precautionary policies were followed tothebestofourability
andincluded:   

Applicants would typically beasked towait intheir vehicles until instructed toenter the
building; however, theattendees atthismeeting wereabletomaintain social distancing
andwore facecoverings.  
Hand sanitizer wasmade available attheentrance ofthetownhall.  
Meeting room occupancy wasrestricted tonomorethan50% ofthemaximum
occupancy (or48persons).  Lessthan48persons attended thismeeting.   

Inaddition toattending personally, thePublic Hearing wasalsoheld using theremote
meeting platform GotoMeeting, sothatthepublic could participate viatelephone or
video conferencing.  Information andpossible updates couldbefoundontheCommunity
Website https://www.livoniany.org/.  Livonia JointPlanning Board.  

Agenda:   

1)  Approve themeeting minutes. – November 23, 2020

2)  GBTRealty Corp. ForDollar General – 4797Main Street, Hemlock, NY
SitePlan review.  

3)  EVEnergy/James Marshall – Rochester Road, Lakeville, NY
Concept.  

Chair RickBennett opened themeeting at7:00p.m.   

1)  Approve Meeting Minutes forNovember 23, 2020.  Chairman RickBennett asked fora
motion toapprove.  M/2/C (J. Palmer/J. Sparling) approved assubmitted. Carried 6-0.  

2)  GBTRealty, forDollar General – 4797MainStreet, Hemlock, NY

1



LIVONIA JOINT PLANNING BOARD
THDECEMBER 14, 2020

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that theLIVONIA JOINT PLANNING BOARD willholdapublic
hearing onMonday December 14, 2020at7p.m. attheLivonia Town Hall, 35Commercial
Street, Livonia, NewYork toconsider theapplication ofFranklin LandAssociates, LLC (Dollar
General) forPreliminary SitePlanaccording toSection 150-116 (E) oftheZoning Codeof
Livonia.  Theproposal isfora9100Sq. Ft. Retail building known asDollar General.  The
property islocated at4797MainStreet, (Hamlet ofHemlock) TownofLivonia, New York, Tax
Parcel #: 85.-1-67.1andiszoned Mixed UseHamlet District (MUHD).  Theapplication isonfile
intheBuilding & Zoning Department intheLivonia Town Hall, 35Commercial Street, Livonia,  
NewYork forpublic review.  All interested parties willbeheard atthistime.  Inaddition to
attending personally, thePublic Hearing willalsobeheldusing theremote meeting platform Go
ToMeeting, sothat thepublic mayparticipate viatelephone orvideo conferencing.    

Chair Rick. Bennett asked Steve Vukas ofBohler Engineering fortheDollar General application
tocome forward fortheproposed SitePlanreview fortheRetail building located on4797Main
Street, Hemlock.  Chair Rick. Bennett asked Zoning Compliance Assistant JulieHoltje toread
theZoning Board meeting decision letter fromOctober 19, 2020.  Thememo summarized that
theZoning Board ofAppeals determined that theShort Environmental Assessment Form (SEQR
PartII) tobedetermined asnosignificant impacts.  TheZoning Board alsodetermined thatPart
IIIoftheenvironmental assessment identified anyimpacts determined not tobesignificant,  
based onthe4000Sq. Ft. to9100Sq. Ft., andwasdeclared anegative declaration.  TheZoning
Board granted theareaVariance with thefollowing conditions: Deed restriction infavorofthe
Town, Property isnottobesubdivided, oranyfuture construction ofbuildings. Applicant to
provide theSHIPO study thatwillbereviewed andapproved bytheBuilding & Zoning
Department.  

Steve VukasofBohler Engineering, representing Franklin Land Associates, LLCstated that the
Dollar General isnotconsidered tobeahigh impact use.  Theywillstartoffwithabout ten
employee’sandmay increase toatotaloffifteen employees.   They haveprepared aresponse to
Clark Patterson Lee’sletterwhich addresses thepossible wetland inthenorth westcorner ofthe
site, andthetraffic impact. They haveobtained theservices ofCPSConsulting, anecological
Biologist thathassubmitted aletter stating that thesiteisnotaregistered wetland.  The
application isnotsubject toArmy Corps ofEngineers review andhasminimal impact.  Thesite
distance andstopdistance isgoodandconcluded notbeasignificant traffic producer.  Aletter
fromtheLivingston County Planning Board recommend approval withcomments.  CEOAdam
Backus clarified that theapplication wasrecommend forapproval with theLivonia Joint
Planning Board addressing theeight comments thatwere associated with their recommendation.    

Attorney James Campbell read theZoning Referral #2020-099forLivingston County Planning
Board.  

TheLivingston County Planning Board, atitsregular meeting onDecember 10, 2020, reviewed
thezoning referral fromtheTownofLivonia oftheabove mentioned pursuant toSections 239-  
landmoftheGeneral Municipal LawoftheStateofNewYork.  

TheCounty Planning Board madeamotion torecommend “ Approval” oftheproposed action
with thefollowing advisory comments:  

2



LIVONIA JOINT PLANNING BOARD
THDECEMBER 14, 2020

1. Toimprove thewalkability andpedestrian safety intheHemlock Hamlet andalongStRt
15A, during SitePlanReview, andifnotdone already, theApplicant should workwith
theTown toaddress pedestrian safety measures suchassidewalks, crosswalks andpaths
forpedestrians toaccess thesitefromoff-site.  

2. Anydevelopment onthisparcel should taketheHemlock-Canadice StateForest into
consideration.  

3. Astheproposal disturbs more than oneacreofsoil, itissubject totheNYSDepartment of
Environmental Conservation (DEC) Phase IIStormwater Regulations andaNotice ofIntent will
need tobefiledbytheApplicant andsubmitted totheNYSDEC forreview.  

TheApplicant should ensure that theSWPPP andNOIaresubmitted totheTown for
concurrent review andmeets thesatisfaction oftheTown andTown Engineer.  

4. Allrequirements asdetailed intheCPLTown Engineer Report, dated December 1, 2020,  
andtheNYSDOT Review, dated October 9, 2020, should bemettothesatisfaction ofthe
Town andTown Engineer.  

5. Ifnotdone already, theApplicant should ensure lighting willbedark skycompliant, and
properly shielded toprevent light trespass onto MainStreet oradjacent properties. The
Applicant should ensure that lighting andsignage complies with theTown Zoning.  

6. Ifnotdone already, theApplicant should ensure that theproposed parking lot
landscaping, tree removal/preservation and fencing meets theTownofLivonia
Landscaping, Screening andBuffer Regulations.  

7. Ifnotdone already, theApplicant should ensure thattheproposed SitePlananddriveway
design isdesigned tothesatisfaction oftheFireMarshall including conformance with
FireCodes/fireprotection water supply/fireapparatus access requirements.  

8. TheCounty Planning Board recognized thebenefit oftheextended detention shallow
wetlands, andtheirassociated plantings andmaintenance, given thepotential visual
impact toadjacent roads.  

Chairman Rick Bennett open thePublic Hearing portion ofthemeeting.  Heasked thatanyone
whowanted tospeak regarding thisapplication tostate theirname andaddress fortherecord.  

WillOuweleen ofO-neh-daVineyard wholivesinConesus commented thathisconcern isfor
thesensitivity totheHamlet ofHemlock. Heisopposed totheDollar General development and
feels that thevision forHemlock isnotrepresented bytheTown ofLivonia.  TheDollar General
doesnotfitacross fromtheState forestandnear thesignature Hemlock Lake.  Hebelieves
Hemlock should bedeveloped tocapture the “oldtown” feeling.  There areseveral otherDollar
General stores within aten-minute radius oftheproposed siteandfeels thevision forHemlock
should begreater thanaDollar General.  

3



LIVONIA JOINT PLANNING BOARD
THDECEMBER 14, 2020

Robert Nilsson aresident ofHemlock stated thathefeltthetraffic study isinadequate.  Cars
rarely stopatthestopsignandtheaverage speed inthatarea isalothigher thanthespeed limit.   
There wasatractor trailer that lostitsbrakes afewyears ago. Hefeels that thedesignated
delivery areafortheDollar General deliveries isvery tightanddoesn’tthinkitisagood solution
fortheirdeliveries.  Heisacertified Tractor Trailer driver andstated thatitwillbenearly
impossible tomaneuver thewaytheyhaveproposed forthetruck deliveries.  Hesuggested since
theywillhaveafour-acreparcel tocreate aloopgoing around thestore, sothetrucks won’thave
toback inandoutofthedelivery area.  Steven Vukas stated that therewillbeonly onedelivery
truckperweek.  There isa30’ widedrive isleand thetruck turnsimulation wasconservative and
shows that thetrucks safely arrive inthedelivery area.  Creating aloopwould create additional
environmental concerns.   Mr. Nilsson feels that theapplicant should petition theD.O.Tto
extend thelower speed limit toencompass thatarea.  Hequestions whytheyneedsomany stores
insuchclose proximity andfears thiswillputShurFineoutofbusiness.  Muchofthe
merchandise ischeap, hasharmful chemicals andismade inChina.  Hequestions whytheyneed
a9100Sq. Ft. building when a6000Sq. Ft. building hasserved thetownofLivonia formany
years.  Sidewalks should bearequirement oftheapplication.  Hefeels that thiswill change the
character oftheHamlet ofHemlock.  Mr. Nilsson also wanted tomake sureRobert Scott’sletter
totheZoning Board ofAppeals wasmade partoftherecord.  Zoning Compliance Assistant Julie
Holtje stated thatMr. Scott’sletter wasmade partoftherecord.  

Tom & PatPawlacyzk of4988 Canadice LakeRoad called inforcomment.  They asked for
clarification where theingress & egress forthesitewaslocated.  They felt thattherearealready
toomany Dollar Generals inclose proximity andadding another onewould ruinthelookofthe
Hamlet.  They areopposed totheDollar General proposal.  

Kathleen Carrof34LakeRoad inAvon called inandstated shefelt thathaving theDollar
General inHemlock would behelpful fortheolder people ofHemlock andthose thatdon’thave
transportation.  

Robert Nilsson ofHemlock commented thathewasalsoconcerned about litter fromtheDollar
General’ssiteending upintheCanadice State Forest.  Henoted that litter seems tobeaproblem
atmanyoftheDollar General locations.  Herequested thatiftheapplication isapproved, that
theykeep the littercontained totheirsiteandnotintheforest.  

Dawn Woodburn ofCoyRoad Livonia stated thatMr. Vukas stated that therewould onlybeone
delivery truckaweek.  Witha9100Sq. Ft. building, thatwillbeimpossible tokeep thestore
stocked.    

Robbyn Haak asked ifatractor trailer istrying toback intothedelivery location andcarsare
trying toenter thesite, whohastowait?  Steve Vukas stated thatitistheir intent tohave the
delivery trucks during offhours when thestore isclosed.  

Chairman RickBennett closed theverbal partofthePublic Hearing.  ThePublic Hearing for
written comments willbeheldopen for2weeks toallow forfurther written comments fromthe
public.  Motion toclose verbal Public Hearing at7:39pm.: M/2/C (R. Haak/J. Palmer) Carried 6- 
0.  

4



LIVONIA JOINT PLANNING BOARD
THDECEMBER 14, 2020

Chairman RickBennett stated thatwearestillwaiting oncomments fromClark Patterson & Lee
andtheD.O.T.  Thetraffic studywillneed tobereviewed bytheBuilding & Zoning office and
analyzed byClark Patterson & Lee.  Sidewalks andcrosswalks need tobecoordinated with the
D.O.T.  Steve Vukas stated thattheyarestillreviewing thesidewalks/crosswalks internally and
thathasnotbeen determined.  CEOAdam Backus stated thatearlyonwhen Dollar General came
forpreliminary SitePlan, theystated theywereasking abigaskandwerewilling toprovide the
improvements tothecommunity.  Sidewalks areapartofourCode andprovisions.  Theyarenot
anaskorextra.  TheSitePlan isconsidered incomplete without sidewalks.  

Chairman RickBennett asked foramotion toputtheapplication onholduntil theyreceive a
completed SitePlanshowing sidewalk.  Motion toplace application onhold: M/2/C (J. Brown/J.  
Sparling) Carried 6-0.  

Robbyn Haak stated that theyellow andblack “Dollar General” signneeds tobetamed down.   
Steve Vukas stated that thesignage isusually donebytheowner.  Robbyn Haak stated that
would besomething theyshould submit prior toapproving theSitePlan.  

CEOAdam Backus stated that theapplicant needs toprovide thetraffic studyforreview, and
petition theD.O.Ttolower thespeed limitinthatarea, along with requesting sidewalks and
crosswalks.  Attorney James Campbell stated that theTown Board needs tobeasked tomake an
inquiry totheD.O.T.  

Zoning Compliance Assistant stated totheBoard that theyshould alsodiscuss thefacade
options.  They haveachoice ontheappearance ofthebuilding. They have thechoice tochoose
thematerials andhave itfitinwith thestate forestarea.  Robbyn Haakrequested that theBoard
begiven additional timetoconsider those choices.  

CEOAdam Backus stated regarding anyissuewith thesitesuchaslitter, environmental, fire
safety orproperty maintenance, hewould likethecontact information ofanactual person to
contact forproblems thatmayarise.  Inthepast, trying tocontact someone toaddress these
issues hasproven tobeverydifficult.  Steve Vukas stated that theleaseofthebuilding would be
responsible forthese issues.  Zoning Compliance Assistant JulieHoltje stated that theBuilding

Zoning office requests acopyofthat lease.  

JackSparling askediftheinterior layout waspartoftheSitePlan.  CEOAdam Backus stated
thatitwasnot, itwould beduring theBuilding Permit / FireCode process toinsure aCode
compliant path forward.    

Zoning Compliance Assistant JulieHoltje askediftheapplicant isplanning onoutdoor storage
forseasonal items anddisplays.  Steve Vukas stated thathewould check withDollar General to
seewhat theywould beproposing.  

Chairman RickBennett stated that thePublic Hearing forwritten comments willremain open for
2weeks.  CEOAdam Backus stated thatBuilding & Zoning willprovide thePlanning Board
withasummery ofthemeeting andprepare forthefollow upmeeting.  TheBoard members can

5



LIVONIA JOINT PLANNING BOARD
THDECEMBER 14, 2020

respond withanyadditional comments regarding theapplication.  Building façade choices
should alsobenoted.  Theapplicant should provide anupdated SitePlanshowing sidewalks and
crosswalks.  Alsoprovide thetraffic study forreview.  

3)  EVEnergy/James Marshall – Rochester Road, Lakeville, NY

Chairman RickBennett asked James Marshall tocome forward forthediscussion onEVFuel.   
James Marshall stated thathehasacontingent purchase offerontheinvestment building on
Rochester Road justbefore South Lima Road.  This isa3.6-acre lotthat is500’ deep.  They
would liketohaveafuelbusiness asthis location.  Theywould offerpropane andfueloiland
heating andaircondition services.  Theexiting building would bestaying andserve astheir
office.  Theywould beimplementing 30,000-gallon propane storage tanks andfueloilstorage
tanks located inthebackoftheproperty.  Thetanks would beabove ground.  Theyaredouble
wall, OPtanks forextra protection.  Thetrucks areloaded fromthebottom ofthetanks andthere
arenofumes withmanysafety measures built in.  Inthemiddle oftheproperty theywould have
diesel tanks.  Thisisafamily owned business since 1913.  Their mainservice islocaldelivery of
fuelwithin 30minutes fromtheir location.  Their technicians anddrivers areoncall24hoursa
day. Theydonotselltosuppliers orwholesalers.  Theonlytrucks coming onto their sitesare
theirown.  Theywould liketobeabletoofferpropane tankrefill forcustomer’sbarbeque grills.  
Theycurrently service central NewYork, suchasGeneva andSyracuse.  Theywould liketo
offer their services towestern NewYork.    

Mr. Marshall was informed that thenextstepintheprocess would betoprepare andsubmit a
siteplanforhisproposal.  

Withnofurther questions, Chairman Rick. Bennett asked forMotion toadjourn themeeting at
8:31p.m...  Motion toadjourn: M/2/C (R. Haak/J. Sparling) Carried 6-0

Respectfully Submitted,   
Alison Houk, Recording Secretary

6


